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June 12. 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH, Vendor #177511,
in the amount of $305,372 for the federal Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval for the period July 1, 2024 through June 30,
2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2025
upon availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

NH Department of Enerav Low Income Weatherization FY 2025
02-52-52-520510-33560000-074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $305,372

2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $35,101 of the above-referenced
contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the
Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of
services to clients eligible for the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical
performance delivering the weatherization program.

The Department is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization
Assistance Program, funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to
weatherize homes to reduce energy consumption and energy costs in eligible low income
households. Priority is given to households that include people who are elderly, disabled, or
children, and households with high energy usage. The Department contracts with New
Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level.
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The Department estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New Hampshire will
contribute to the weatherization of approximately 136 homes in the State.

The requested advance of funds will enable Southwestern Community Services, Inc. to operate
the program between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for
allowable program expenses as detailed in Exhibit C.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAl, PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Stale Agency Name

Department of Energy
1.2 Slate Agency Address

21 S. Fruit St., Ste 10, Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way, PO Box 603. Keene, NH
03431-0603

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 352-7512

1.6 Account Unit and Class

33560000-074

1.7 Completion Date
6/.30/2025

1.8 Price Limitation

$305,372

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Kirk Stone, Wcaiherizalion Program Manager
1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-3670

l.ll Contractor Signature

SlQjriudA^ Da.e:05/07/3V
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Beth Daniels, CEO

1.1 i^ale Agency S^na^re ^ ). 14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

Jared S. Chicoine, Commissioner

l.lir Appioval by the N.M. Ocptirbiictil 6rAdministration.t>ivision of Personnel (if applicable)

U By: Director. On;

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: Ckl^istopk^t- G. Mtin Or: 5/13/2024
Senior Assi«ant Attorney General

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become cfTeclivc on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated fimds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated fiinds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, In whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribeiy, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable taws.
7.2' The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specilying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contraaor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") .describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

lO.l As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, flics,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions,' drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor ony of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its afllliales, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against alt actions, claims, damages, demands.
Judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing^ nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 4
Contractor Initials



U. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or cxces.s;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by Insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Conuactor shall furnish to the Contracting Offtcer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all rcncwal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A fiyorker.t'
Compensation
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any applicable
rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or fbr any other claim or
benefit for Contractor,' or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
perfoimance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Orrice addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICriNC TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature up>on any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement wit! remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002
(Wcatherization Assistance Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance
Program State Plan,.Weatherization Assistance Program Policies and Procedures, and
Field Guide are alj considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this
contract. The NH Department of Energy (Department) reserves the right to use any legal
remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of
funds, suspension of agency personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of
agencies and/or subgrantecs from present or future contracts, and such other legal
remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice
in the enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the Weatherization Assistance
.Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Grantee's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR
200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of
revenues and expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the
Grantee's fiscal year. The Grantee shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a
qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a
response to the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all
management letters written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be
forwarded to the Department within one month of the time of receipt by the Grantee
accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the General Provisions of the
P37:

"9.4 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by the Subgrantee
shall allow the NH Department of Energy, the US DOE, the Comptroller General of the
United States, or any duly authorized representatives, access to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent
to the Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcription."

4. In paragraph 10 of the General Provisions, the following sentence shall be deleted: "The
form, subject matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be
identical to those of any Final Report described in EXFIIBI.T A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed In 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 Exhibit A. B, C
ALN No. 81.042 Initials Date

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Page 1 of^5



6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Grantee
for three years from the dale of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards .
that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the dale of the submission of the quarterly or
annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.333 - Retention Requirements for
Records.

7. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's Indirect cost rate
is 25.14 percent.

8. Kirk Stonie, Weatherization Program Manager at the Department, has been designated
with the responsibility for overseeing this contract.

9. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between
the parties that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining
additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if authorized
under that law.

10. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed:
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding
Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility
Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance;
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance
Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

11. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of
$2,000.00 for construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with
Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor
Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each Grantee, subcontract or
subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the
construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the Department.

12. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D
- Post Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on
financial procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property
management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D — Post Federal Award Requirements - Property
Standards).

13. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 60 days of the completion dale (Agreement Block
1 .7).

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 ^
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1 . Southwestern Community Services, Inc., hereinafter "the Grantee," agrees to perform
weatherization services and all additional services and other work necessary to provide
Wealherization Assistance Program (WAP) services to eligible low income individuals in
accordance with the regulations set forth by the U. S. Department of Energy in 10 CFR
440 dated February 1, 2002, and in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and in accordance with the
provisions and procedures contained in the most recent New Hampshire Weatherization
Assistance Program (NHWAP) Slate Plan, Policies and Procedures Manual, Field Guide,
and as otherwise administered by the Department.

Periodically the Department may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SG) and Subgrantee
Notices (SN) or other management and/or guidance clarifications as necessary. All such
changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Weatherization Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide. The Grantee agrees to alter the Program procedures
in accordance with a SG, SN or other instructions.

The Grantee agrees to abide by changes in the NH Weatherization Assistance Program as
prepared by NHWAP and further agrees to perform Weatherization Program services in a
manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency
programs for low-income households in order to provide the best services for New
Hampshire's low-income households.

2. The contract period, to be known as Program Year 2024 (PY24), will commence on upon
approval from New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council (Governor and
Executive Council), and will have a completion dale of June 30, 2025.

3. Grantee must provide the Department with a budget for the use of NHWAP funds before
any reimbursement for wealherization work will be paid by the Department.

4. In PY24, Grantee agrees to complete wealherization services on 21 dwelling units
according to the standards outlined in the most recent NH Weatherization Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide.

(a) Weatherization Services are intended to increase the energy efficiency of the
home, and to improve the home's comfort and safety. A certified energy auditor
will first perform a NHWAP energy audit on the home using scientific test
equipment. Specific energy conservation measures and heating source repairs
will then be implemented in order of priority and cost effectiveness. This
integrated activity is carried out in accordance with provisions and procedures
outlined in the most recent NH Policies and Procedures Manual and Field Guide.

(b) The minimum number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended
shall conform to the provisions of this contract. Deviations of more than 20%

AwardNo. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 ^hibitA.B.C
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from expected dwelling unit goals in any given quarter may result in a reduction
of the contract amounts and a reallocation of funds to other Grantees.

5. In accordance with the US DOE's "'Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the provisions of
Weathcrization Program Notice (WPN) 15-4
https://www.energv.gov/ecrc/waD/downloads/wpn-l 5-4-qualitv-work-plan-rcquirement-
update) and as modified in WPN 22-4 (Weathcrization Program Notice 22-4: Quality

Work Plan Reouirement Update I Department of Energvl beginning April 1, 2015,
Grantee must have regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality
Control lnspector(s), available as either staff or Grantees, able to fully function in that
capacity. This contract provides funding for continued training and technical assistance
sufficient to allow the Grantee to secure and maintain the skilled personnel necessary to
meet the requirements of WPN 15-4 and WPN 22-4.

6. All work performed under the Weathcrization Assistance Program in New Hampshire,
using federal money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum
specifications defined in the US Department of Energy's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP)
and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). Details are presented in the
Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energy Upgrades referred to in US DOE
Weathcrization Program Notice 15-4 and updated in Weathcrization Program Notice 22-
4, as well as in the New Hampshire Weathcrization Assisiancc Program's Field Guide,
2021 Edition, which governs how WAP energy conservation measures (ECMs) are to be
implemented. The Grantee must ensure, and be able to document for the Department,
that all staff and Grantees who perform Weathcrization work in PY24 are properly
trained and certified for that work and have been informed that their work must meet the

requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbursement will not occur.

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 Exhibit A C
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfaetory performance of the Services, the Department agrees to pay
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. in total, the sum of:

$305,372 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
$ 42,042 may be expended for Administration,
$ 20,125 may be expended forTraining & Technical Assistance.
$ 30,972 may be expended for Health & Safety measures,
$ 36,727 may be expended for Readiness measures,
$175,506 (the balance), to be spent on weatherization activities (Program Activity)

and

$ 35,101 will be issued as a program cash advance.

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Grantee only after written
documentation of cash need is submiiied to the Department. Disbursement of the contracted
amount shall be made in accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR
200.305(b) on an advance basis; limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in
accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the Grantee in carrying out the
purpose of the program. The Grantee must make timely payments to (sub)Grantees in
accordance with the contract provisions. Grantee shall submit a payment request to the
Department for each month of the contract period. Payment requests from Grantee shall be
received at the Department no later than the 15^ day of each month, or the first business day
following the IS'^day.

Administrative costs are provided to cover a specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Administrative funds may be pro-rated by the Department if production unit
completions do not meet expected production goals.

The Department may, as a function of its administrative oversight, modify contracted budget
amounts as necessary to ensure the efficient operation of the NHWAP as long as these modified
expenditures do not exceed the Contracted Amount total as specified above.

All obligations of the Department, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent
upon the availability and continued appropriation of Federal funds for the services to be
provided.

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01 /2022 ' Exhibit A, B, C
ALNNo. 81.042 Initials m Date
Southwestern Communit>' Services, Inc. Page 5 of3



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections
5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;4l U.S.C. 701 et seq.),
and further agrees to have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections l.ll and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act
of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31. 1989, regulations were
amended and published as Pan 11 of the May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 2I68I-2169I), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain
a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees
and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year
in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set
out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination
of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Grantee s using this form should send it to:
Kirk Stone, Weatherization Assistance Manager, New Hampshire Department of Energy
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10. Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given
a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);' •

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will-

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Dale 07/01/2022 Exhibit D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph
(d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of
convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer on whose
grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a
centra] point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of
each affected grant;

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted-

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e). and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
63 Community Way, Keene NH 03431

Check Q if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

St>ufhtUf<,Wn Qjnmun /Vut Jg/vi kuoon G&C approval through June 30. 2025
Grantee Name Period Covered by this Certification

3e.ih Honk I SiCeo
Name and Title of Authorized Grantee Representative

XlfiA S-ClnieJ^ O5/0 iJqH
Grantee Representative Signature Date

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 ofehibit D thru_
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319
of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and
further agrees to have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
Weatherization Assistance Program

Contract Period: From the date of approval by the NH Governor and Executive Council to June 30, 2025
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard E.xhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Grantee Representative Signature Grantee's Representative Title

/^mmuh/fu SmireAjnc
Grantee Name v Date '

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 Exhibit DlhruH
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Grantee identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Executive
Ofllce of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debairnent, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections l.ll and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Ener^ (Department) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primaiy participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the
Department determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal

■ Government, the Department may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the E)epartment to whom this

proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as
used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing
Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by the Depanment.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by the Department, without modification, in ail lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business
dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal government, the Department may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 Exhibit D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, conPd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Stale or local) transaction or
a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission
of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false
statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period.preceding this application/proposal, had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Panicipants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility. and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier covered transactions.

tl6C>
Grantee Representative Signature Grantee's Representative Title

6oulhuk',',k/n/jC>mmunihj 05lbi(aLi
Grantee Name >J Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Grantee's representative
as identified in Sections I. I I and I.! 2 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Grantee agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

^/uilyy ̂  C£.0
Grantee Representative Signature Grantee's Representative Title

T/ifnmfiiillij nr. 05{Cin(Si^
Grantee Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERXIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are furided by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or
Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the.Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Grantees shall certify accordingly.

Grantee Representative Signature Grantee's Representative Title

(ImM/jnihj Seivun ilnr. CSIOllSH
Grantee Name J Dale
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT I .

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRiMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S. W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction Project
(1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc., (Hereinafter called the "Grantee") HEREBY AGREES to comply with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy Administration Act of .
1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135), Title
Vlll of the Civil Rights Act ori968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of 1977 (Pub.
L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code
of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto, the
Grantee agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity in which the Grantee receives Federal assistance from the Department
of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Grantee by the Department of Energy, this assurance obligates
the Grantee for the period during which Federal assistance is c.xtended. In the case of any transfer of such service,
financial aid, equipment, propcrtj', or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which
Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the Grantee for
the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this assurance
obligates the Grantee for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Grantee by the
Department of Energy.

Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Grantee's employment
practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance extended by the
Department, the Grantee agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or
disability, in its employment practices.. Such employment practices may include, but are not limited to,
recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and
participation In upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

SubrecipieDt Assurance

The Grantee shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 q/-v Exhibit I .
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laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance form;
however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the collection
or submission of written assurance forms.

Data ColIectioD and Access to Records

The Grantee agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result
of the Grantee's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall include, but
is not limited to the following: (I) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data necessary
for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited discrimination;
(2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3) data regarding
covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of
the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or understand
English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related information
adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any
person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national
origin, sex. age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the program; and (6)
any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the obligation to assure
compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Grantee agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Grantee from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Grantee (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of infonnation pertinent to the Grantee's compliance with the civil rights laws shall
be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the date
hereof, to the Grantees by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after such data
of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Grantee recognizes and agrees that
such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements made in this
assurance, and that the United Slates shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This
assurance is binding on the Grantee, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose
signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Grantee.

Grantee Certification

The Grantee certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with all
applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Grantee upon written request to
DOE).

Representative Name/Title; /Wh Dnm'els , C,£Q
Signature: 7^. Da.e os/oija'-l
Southwesiem Community Services, Inc.
63 Community Way, Keene NH 03431
603.352.7512
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT J
CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October I, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting SubawarJ and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or contract
award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location ofthe entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (UEl #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from the Federal government, and those revenues
are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which the
award or award amendment is made.

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of The
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Grantee agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New Hampshire
Department of Energy and to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.

f)(intlJA ■ /Wfi Dnnir/s . (LEO
Grantee Representative Signature Authorized Grantee Representative Name & Title

(Saut1n\ni^e/n Ccmirum 'liif SerrKis, Jnc. 05{0lf^H
Grantee Name J Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the below
listed questions are true and accurate.

. The UEI number for your entity is:.

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $30,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls. and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to U2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to U2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or organization
are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT L

CERTIFICATION REGARDING NHPA and NEEA COMPLIANCE FOR WAP23

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 42 U.S.C. §4321 ei seq., rules
promulgated thereunder (40 CFR Parts 1500-1508), guidance documents issued by the Office of
Management and Budget or the U.S. Department of Energy (U.S. DOE), New Hampshire
Department of Energy (Department) executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement,
and US DOE Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy (EERE) NEPA Determination
GFO-WAP-2024A (NEPA Determination-WAP24).

The Grantee agrees to assure compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation
Act (NHPA) and the Department executed Historic Preservation Programrhatic Agreement prior
to authorizing the use of funds.

The Grantee agrees that it will not fund activities that are not "Allowable Activities" pursuant to
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Determination-WAP24, which include:

1. Administrative activities associated with management of the designated Weatherization
Office and management of programs and strategics in support of weatherization activities.

2. Development and implementation of training programs and strategies for weatherization
effort, including initial home energy audits, final inspections, and client education.

3. Purchase of vehicles and equipment needed for administrative activities, weatherization
energy audits, installation of measures indicated below, and quality control inspections.

4. Weatherization activities provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the
respective Recipients' DOE executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are
installed in existing buildings, arc appropriately sized, are covered by Appendix A of 10 CFR 440,
and/or approved as part of the energy audit approval procedures and material approvals process,
and limited to:

a. Building Shell Measures:
i. Install insulation where needed;

ii. Perform air sealing;
iii. Repair and replace windows, storm windows, install window film, awnings

and solar screens;
b. Mechanical Measures:

i. Clean, tune, repair, or replace heating and/or cooling systems;
ii. Install duct and heating pipe insulation;
iii. Repair leaks in heating/cooling ducts;
iv. Install programmable thermostats;
V. Repair/replace domestic water heaters;
vi. Install domestic hot water heater tank insulation;
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ALNNo. 81.042 Initials Date

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Page i of^3



c. Electric and Water Measures:

I. . Install efficient light sources;
ii. Install low-flow showerheads;
ill. Replace inefficient refrigerators with energy-efficient models.

5. Energy-related health and safety measures (per Weatherization Program Notice 22-7, or
the most current guidance) provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the Department
executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and are
limited to:

a. Combustion appliance safely inspections;
b. Air quality assessment and limited removal of formaldehyde, volatile organic

compounds, flammable liquids, and other air pollutants;
c. Gas and bulk fuel leak inspections;
d. Testing and/or containment, removal or disposal of lead, asbestos, mold, moisture,

refrigerant, mercury, and other materials so WAP activities may be completed;
c. Radon testing and the installation of precautionary measures to minimize radon

infiltration, including but not limited to, sump pump covers, covering exposed dirt
floors with polyethylene sheeting which contains a rating of no more than 0.1 perm,
which is sealed and attached at all seams, walls and foundation penetrations;.

f. Inspection of combustion appliances and installation of carbon monoxide and
smoke alarms;

g. Install ventilation as required by the American Society of Healing and Air-
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.2-2016 standard, including blower door
testing addressing infiltration, ventilation, and exhaust.

6. Weatherization Readiness Fund (WRF) supported activities focused on structural, health,
and safety issues in the dwelling which must be addressed before weatherization measures can be
safely and effectively installed, provided that those activities adhere to the requirements of the
Department executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in existing
buildings, and are limited to:

a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors;
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs;
c. Roof repairs;
d. Interior and exterior wall repairs:
e. Ceiling repairs;
f. Floor repairs;
g. Foundation or subspace (crawl space) repairs;
h. Exterior drainage repairs limited to gutter repair or replacement, trimming shrubs,

and/or grading in close proximity to the perimeter of the foundation.

7. Incidental and necessary energy-related repairs and replacements limited to:

a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors;
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs;

8. Development, implementation, and installation of onsite renewable energy technology
from renewable resources, provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the Department
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executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in or on an existing
structure, and do not require ground disturbance or tree removal, and limited to:

a. PV systems appropriately sized that do not exceed 60 kW;
b. Solar hot water heating systems appropriately sized that do not exceed 200,000

BTU/HR;

c. Battery storage, if applicable, attached to a structure (e.g., inside a garage) and not
visible from the public right of way.

Activities/projects not listed above, including ground disturbing activities and tree removal;
activities where the following elements exist: extraordinary circumstances, cumulative impacts or
connected actions that may lead to significant effects on the human environment, or any
inconsistency with the "integral.elements" (as contained in 10 CFR Part 1021, Appendix B) as
they relate to a particular project; and activities restricted elsewhere in Award No. DE-EE00099I.6
are not "Allowable Activities."

Activities that do not qualify as "Allowable Activities" as defined above are subject to additional
NEPA review, which requires additional documentation and submission of an environmental
questionnaire. If the Grantee wants to fund activities that do not qualify as "Allowable Activities,"
then Grantee agrees to notify the Department WAP Administrator, and to seek NEPA review
through the Department WAP Administrator. Activities requiring NEPA review are not authorized
for Federal funding and the Grantee may not undertake or fund those activities unless and until the
US DOE Contracting Officer, through the Department WAP Administrator, provides written
authorization for those activities.

All activities related to hazardous material identified during a WAP job will be managed In
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local requirements.

The Grantee agrees to document conformance with the Allowable Activities listed above before
commencement of any project.

The Grantee agrees to complete the online US DOE training on NEPA and Historic Preservation
at www.energv.gov/node/4816816. Proof of complete training must be submitted to the
Department WAP Administrator.

Grantee Representative Signature Grantee's Representative Title

Dan ids CiSlO'riQq
Grantee Name Date

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 ^ Exhibit L. .
ALN No. 81.042 Initials/^ Date OSfOljQ^Lf
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Page 3 of 3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CP.RTIFICATE

I. Uavid M. Scanlaji, Secretary of Stale ol ihe Siaie of New Marapshirc, do hercb>- certity that SOIITHWESTF.RN COM.Ml/NITY

SliRVICliS. INC). is o New Hampshire Nonprofii Corpopation registered to transact husiiicss in New Hampshire on May 19. 1965.

I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State*s otTlce have been received arxJ is In good standing

as far as this oifiec is concerned.

Business (L): 6SSI4

Certificate Number: 0006663003

o

IN TESTIMONY WIIRRP.OF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of iltc State of New Hampshire,

(his 9ih day ol" April A.D. 2024.

(»CiI
David M. Scanlan

Sccreiao ofSiotc



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Kevin Watterson hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Corporation/LLC)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerWSecretary/Officer of Southwestem Community Services Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a.true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 18 2021 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth Daniels. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duty authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the .
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporabon. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with^tf^jState oT^New Hampshire,
all such limitations ere expressly stated herein.

Dated: 4/16/2024
StfnaHjre of Elected Officer
Name: Kevin Watterson

Title; Chairperson

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATE <MIWDO/rrm

12/19/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is ait ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poUcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subfect to the term's artd conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rtg^ to the certificate holder in lieu of such eiMtorsementfs).

PRODUCER

The Hib Group New England, LLC

PO Box 606

Keene NH 03431

Ane ODoivtelL CPIW. CC

(877)352.212.

A^'ess- so^heilQhlbfiroup.com
mSURCmS} AFFGRDMO COVtRAOB NAICa

INSURER A; Philedslphie indemnity Insurance Co 18058

INSURED

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

63 Community Vfty

PO Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER a: State Healthcare S Human Services Trust

INSURER C :

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

M3URER t:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 24/29 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WtTH RESPECT TQ WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TOAU THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

IN8R
LTR TYPE OP MSURANCe RrjivSj POLICY NUMBER

FdLlCVEff
fMMmOnYYYl

FDLieYEkF
immSo/vyyyi LIMITS 1

A

X COMflCRCUU. OENERAL UASILITY

E f ̂  OCCUR

PHPK2638316 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE j 1,000,000

1 ClARilS IiMC DJLLUCe TQ neNTEO s 100.000

UEO EXP (Am en* Mne*) s 5.000

. PERSONAL a ADV INJURY . 1.000.000

CCNt AQOREOATe LIMIT *PPU|S PER: GENERALA6CRE0ATE ' S 2.000.000

POLICY 1 15ecT LJ i-oc
OTHER:

PROt>UCTS • COaFYOP AGO . 2,000.000

□ Professional Uabittty S 1m/2in

A

I AuTOMoaiLe uAiiLriY

PHPK2636315 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

COM8INEO SWOLE UMT
(EAKdMnn S 1.000.000

X ANY AUTO BOCXLY INJURY |P«r p«rMn| i

owrco
AUTOS ONLY
MREO
AUTOS ONLY

SaCOULEO
AUTOS
NON.OvmEO
AUTOS ONLY

BOOAY INJURY (Pw accMtm) i .
PROPERTY OAJklAOE
tPl KCMtAI) S

s

A
X UMaRELLALMO

excess UAB
1X OCCUR

CLANiOMAOe PHUB8d3672 01/01/2024 01/01/2025
EACNOCCUrtRENCE $ 2.000.000

J AGGREGATE j 2.000.000
loED IX RETENTIONS ''OOOO S

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AM) EMPLOYERS-UA8AITY

ANYPtWFRieTOWPAItTNERrEXECUTIVE rTTl
lOFFICERrMEMBERCXClUOEO? 1 ^|(M«tdtur|rlnNM) '
ir ym. CMcnb* unM
OeSCRPTON OF OPERATIONS

N/A HCHS20242000036 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

V PER ( OTH.
^ STATUTE 1 6R
C.LEACHACClOeNT , 1.000.000

e.L. DISEASE • EA EhAOYEE J 1.000.000

EL. DISEASE • POUCY tlUT is 1.000.000

OESCRSPTION OF 0PCRAT10N9 / LOCATIONS fVCHICLS9 (ACORO 101. AMDontf Rtnwft* SclwduN. xwy b« •aacAM IT <ner« tMC* H r*«Ar«0)

3a State: NH. Al oflkert induded. This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate hoidar. This certificate
does not emervf. extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies referenced herein.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Slate of Hew Hempshlre
Department of Energy
21 South FruHSLSte 10

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE AB(3VE DESCRrSED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHCRI2E0 REPRCSENTATIVe

ACORO 2S (2016^3)
ei98S-201SACORD CORPORATION. All rights rossrved.

Ths ACORO nam« and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NORTH CONWAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directore of
Southwestern Community Sen/Ices, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Corhmunity" Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May-Si, 2023, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies as of May
31. 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended iri
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
Ufiited States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained iri
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of-Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities,, in. accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We. believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

. Responsibitities ofManagement for the Financiai Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consblldated
fi nancial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Urlited
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fajr presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement; whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are;
conditions or ^events,; considered' in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies' ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available
to be issu^,

Auditors' Responsifsilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue.an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a.high level of
assurance but Is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may ihvplve cbllusioh, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.. Misstatements are considered material If there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, tfiey would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
■ Govemment Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
staternents, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures,
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but hot for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
and related companies' internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our. judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Southwestern Community Service's, Inc.
and related companies' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal coritrol-related matters that we Identified during the audit.



Report on Summarized Comparative information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related cortipanies'
■2022 financial stateniehts, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
fi nancial statements in pur report dated February O-. 2021 In our opinion, the'summarized
.comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31. 2022, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which It has been-
derived.

Supptementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opmion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole: The accompanying schedule of experiditures of federal awards, as
required by- Title '2 U.S. Code of Federal- Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, \s presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the .responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, includirig comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the consolidated financial staternents as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 24, 2024, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on ttie
effectiveness of Southwestem Community SeiVices, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That rejsort is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditirig Standards in considering Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
January 24, 2024



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVlCgS..tNC. AND RELATED CQMPANIgS

CONSOUDATED.STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31.2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

■CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equlvaients
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY
Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
purntture and fixtures

Total property

Less accurtiuiated depredation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS
Investment.in related parties
Right of use aroet
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and resen/e funds
Security.deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABiLinES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued pa^l and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Refundable advances
Current portion of right of use liability
Current portion of Economic injury Disaster Loan
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

• NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term right of use iiabHtty, less current portion shown above
Economic Injury Disaster Loan, less current ^rtion shown above
Long term dedt. less current portion .shown above

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total rtabtliUes

NET ASSETS
Without donor.restridions

' With donor restrictions

total net assets ^
Total liabilities and net assets

2023

2,237,914
2,027,517

157,449

4.422.880

30,392,465
647,670
983.264

32,023,399

16.520.026

15.503.373

64.178
98;i59
53:695

1,556,493
111,044

384

1,684.153

239,270
158.107
235,401
166,988

1,246,78?
32,364

3,685
183.158

2.265.760

65,795
.144,966

11.103,983

11,314.744

13.560.504

8.106.510
123:392

8,229.962

2022

3,153:976
1,745;952

243.990

5.143.918

29.859,136
555,554
958.072

31.372,762

15.527.483

15.845.279

9^,230

47.566
1,479,277

111,033
384

1.732,490

$ 21.810.406 $ 22.721.687

208,035
229,110
353.786
158,972

1,519,622

3,585
159,974

2,633,084

148,415
11,243,212

11,389.627

14:022.711

8,564,624
134,352

8,698.976

$ 21.810.406 $ 22.721.687

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELAtED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

Without Donor

Restflctlohs

With Donor

Restrictions

2023

Total

2022

Total

REVENUEiS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Government contracts-

Program service fees
Rental income'
Support
Sponsorship
Interest iricome

'Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

.In-kind contributions

$ 23,407,391
2,460,960
1,873.226

591,754

8,197
18,235

166.931
104,742
69,852

$

123.392

$ 23,407,391
.2,480.960

1.873,226
715,146.

8.197

18,235
166.931
104,742
69,852

$ 24;553.574
2,991,407
1,817.636
669,175
28,520

1,099
^,609
156,954
89,366

Total revenues and other support 28,721,288 123.392 28,844,680 30.398,340

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

■Total revenues, other support, and
!nel assets released frorh restrictions-

134,352 (134.352)

28.855.640 (10.960) 28 844 680 -30.398.340

EXPENSES
Progr^ services

Home bnergy programs
Education end nutrition
Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

9,895,617
3,090,471
9,417,446
3,113,505

731,021
678,220

-

9.895,617
3,090.47"1
9,417,446
3,113,505

731,021
678,220

7,051.760
2,826.493

13,349,416
3,070.446

658,791
- 683,000

Total program services 26.926,280 - 26,926,280 27,639,905

Supporting acdvfdes
Management and general 2,360,358 2,360.358 2.031,266

Total ^penses 29,286,638 29,2^,638 29.671.171

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
GAIN (LOSS) ON SALE OF PR9PERTY (430,998) (10.960) (441.958) 727.169-

GAIN (LOSS) ON SALE OF PROPERTY 2,936 - ^2,936' (14,836)

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LlMITEb PARTNERSHIPS (30,052) - (30.052) (43,771)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (458,114) (10,960) (469,074) -666,562

NET ASSETS; BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,564,624 134.352 6,698,976 -8,030.414.

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  8,106,510 S  123,392 $  8,229,902 $  8.698,976

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWgSTERN COMMUMfTY ggRViegg IMC AWD WRATgD CQMP*Wtg8

CONSOUDATED 9TATEMEHT OF FUNCTKMAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR EWOEO MAY 31. 3023

PpyroB
PayrofliaxM
Employw benefte
Rsiywnenl

AdvwtisinQ
BanAchargas
Conpuiercosi
Contractual
Daptaeiation
Ouea/raoistration
DupBeaiinQ
Insuranee

Merest

Meeting artd confarerKa
Miacettaneo«a expense
MiSCflSBfWOOS l8XW

Equlpmeni purchases
OflteeejQense
Poetage
Profestional fees

Staff development anP traMng
Subscriptions
— «- -- -

I cfcpnono

Travel

VMtide

Rent

Space costs
Oiract dient essistarrce
Irvkind expenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT ANO GENERAL AaOCATION

ANocadon of management and gerterd experues

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

HomeEitargy

Scsfiasa

694.298
57,891
132.466
35.253
3.510

10

22.147

751.082

1.469
13.455

13.891
1.205

7.732

68.290
1.378
2.825
10,191

7.081
7.440
15.962
19.200
18.019

8.012.822

9.695.617

867.450

Education

and

Ntrtrftton

1.847.987
151.863

360.268
105.574

7.035

21.189
15.648
28.865
4.480
12.587
16.378
3.940
156

2,599

3,636

12.574
226

1.323

4.984
19.611

551

13.900
244.532
140.913
69.852

3.090.471

270,911

Homalaae

833.731
50.582

144.229
38.176
1,706
23

21,648
35.804
159.460

38.947
S.20S
896

45

31.714
178

6.559
1,065

29.729
128.830

1.653

554.835
7.532.435

9.417.448

825,533

Ecottomic

Houaing Davatopmant Otttar Total Managament 2023

Servtees Servfccs Preerams . ErgBTBD and General Total

625.222 5  353,418 I  441.854 5 4.596.510 5  918.734 5  5.515,244.

49.028 30.751 36.239 376.154 87.510 443.664

212.369 35.364 128.121 1,012.817 163.748 1.176.583

44.702 15,638 26.598 266.141 83.144 349,285

.  3.611 2.333 - 16.195 1,524 19.719

4.175 - - 4,208 8.243 1Z451
28,550 19,001 - 112.533. 147.767 260.300'
21.229 32.679 11,039 867.461 117.724 985.205'

692.182 . 7.7X 888.207 148.SQ 1.036,789
1.080 488 287 6.295 11,110 17.405
. . - 14.056 16,742 30.798

70,125 19,755 9.030 167.690 44,378 212.068

54,004 . 428 63.577 108,653 172,230
3.962 4.153 901 23.959 15.367 39,326

130.108 13.041 1.164 148.162 36.401 184,563

122.213 - - 122.213 451 122.664

7.983 . . 19.351 590 19.941

12.403 10,330 1.830 135.141 33.063 168,204
123 484 . 2.387 37.767 40.154

32.542 . - 41.926 99.770 141.696

6.558 1,760 1.228 22.125 24.323 46,446
115 . . 115 327 442

19.282 1.771 1,698 64,745 eaiss 124.900
10.111 38.103 . 204.095 6.650 210.745

25.000 83.381 7,639 134.168 772 134.938
. . 33.1X - 33.1M

922.645 15.968 - 1.755.999 160.957 1.916.956
14.163 52.443 2.264 15.755.080 45.928 15.801.006
. . . 68.852 - 69.852

3,113.505 731.021 678.220 26.926.280 • 2.360.358 29.286.638

272.9» 84.061 59.453 2.360.358 (2.360.3581 .

$ 10.763.067 5 3.361.382 $ 10242.979 $ 3.366.435 S 795,102 $ 737.673 5 29.286.638 » 29.286.638

Sea Nbtas is CensoMatad Ftnartdal Statamcnts
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SQUTHWgyrgffM COMMUWrTY agPVICPa IWC. *WD RELATgP COMPAMga

CONSOUOATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTK)NAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY SI. 7072

Educatfcm Economic

Home Energy and Monteleaa Houstag Developmtrtt Otftar Total ManaQamtnt 2022

Proorerrw MwtiWon 9mantn* Servtees PrtMrams Proorem IfllJ Ptfmfl, Total

Psyrol S  S51.44& S  1.553.713 $  601,460 $  872,177 S  340.079 S  416.924 S  4.135.811 $  856,748 8 4.992.559
Psyros taxes «.132 127.557 49,849 51.549 30.490 35.545 340.122 68,379 406,601
En^MoyM benafita 137.544 387.109 140.322 217,637 27.775 137.184 1,047.571 101,743 1,149,314
Retlieiiwil 31.440 95.678 32.687 49.044 18.083 18.560 243.710 66.594 310,304
AdvertUno 1.06Q 12.573 428 7,537 8.801 30.403 5,120 35.525

Benkchsran 35 - 663 4,650 . . 5.346 9.701 15,049
Computer cod 307 15.754 13.319 8.001 14.818 . 52,196 127,747 179,946
Contractual 828.975 15.256 87.421 28,033 . 35,197 992,882 63,330 1.056212
Depreciation . 26.438 134.038 674.508 . 3.810 838,790 150,083 989,773
Duo/raglstrabon . 2.536 . 490 506 125 3.662 11,739 15,401
Ouplicatmg - 8.660 . . . .  . 8.660 5,503 14,163

inaurBnce 8.123 16.620 35,676 62,108 19.859 7,313 147.699 45,537 193,236
Interest . 423 9.536 48,622 . 278 59.059 118,506 177,585
Meettng and conference . . 354 3.255 832 2.882 7.303 1,636 8.939
Misoelanaous expenae 870 2.917 120 112,217 6.368 5.102 127.414 30.814 158228
Mieceflarteou) taxes - . . 129.976 • . 129.978 150 130.128
Equipment purthaxas 14.730 3.421 - 5,376 • 519 24.048 720 24.768
Office expertse 43.201 8,735 22.754 10.409 3.513 90 88.702 24,071 112,ns
Postage 190 383 26 24 171 - 798 33.927 34,723
Professional fees 1,075 • 4.323 26,930 . 220 32.548 85.753 118.301
Staff deveiopmers and training 1.868 2.687 825 3.095 121 1.665 10.259 8.781 19.040

Sutrscriptlons . -
. 228 . . 228 180 408

Tetephone 5.147 3,727 21.870 19,709 1.930 1.298 53,481 48.594 100.079
Travel 4.715 18,859 11,158 14,784 26.330 249 76,095 1,428 77.523
Vehicle 9.433 - 2.096 24,565 79.218 13.061 128,374 1,420 129,794
Rare 8.0OO 16.300 . . 24.595 . 46,805 48,895
Space costs 21.837 205.132 456.406 686.317 19.742 25 1.569.461 164.162 1,753,823
Direct dent assmance 5.338,625 212.648 11.724.070 11.007 37.540 2.953 17.327,043 . 17,327,043
Itvkind expensea - 89.366 . . - . 89.366 89.366

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 7,051,760 2.828.493 13.349.415 3.070.446 658.791 683.000 27.639.905 2.031.268 29.671.171

Allocation of matragamera end gerretal axpensas 518,236 207.720 981.053 225.648 48.415 50.194 2.031.268 f2.031.266l .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S  7.569.996 5  3.034.213 S 14.330.468 S 3,296.094 $  707.208 $  733.194 3 29.671.171 S $ 29.671,171

Sm Notes to ConsolUited Fiunclil Statsmsots
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. \HC. AND RELATED COMPANtES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net ass^
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
ArhortiTation of deferr^ financing costs
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Loss on investment in limited partnerships
Forgiveness of detjl

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Security deposits

(Decrease) increase in iiabiilties:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Acaued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property
Purchase of property

NEt CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

*

1

2023 2022

$  (469,074) $  666.562

1.036.769 989,773
662 662

(2.936) 14.836
30,052 43.771

(166.931) (90,609)

(281,565) 38,041
86,541 (181,362)
(6,329) 7,572

(11) (5.243)

31,235 (32,551)
(71,003) 59,036

(118,385) 109,783
8,016 10,118

(272,835) 789,667

(195,794) 2.422.056

3.301 3.840
(467.807) (831.642)

(464.506) (827.802)

8,581
(187,127) (155.683)

(178.546) (155.683)

(838,846) 1,438,571

4,633,253 3,194,682

$  3,794,407 ,$ 4,833.253

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMMUNtTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

■ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 20^

SUPPLEiyiE^AL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the.year for interest $ 171.568 S 176.903

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,237,914 $ 3.153,976.
Cash escrow and reserve funds 1,556,493 1,479.277

Total cash and restrict^ cash $ 3.794.407 •$ 4,633,253

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Property financed by long term debt $ 227,421 S 595.015

See Notes to Consolidated Financial.Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

N0TE1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

General

Southwestern, Community Services, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to
the elderly,, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and Sullivan
counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the areas
of education, child development, employment, energy and its con^n/ation,
housing, > and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Corporation, SCS Housing. Inc.. SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below..The Organization is committed to providing respectful support services
and assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping
them overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is
derived from governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern

Corhmunity Services, Inc. and the following entities (collectively the
Organization) as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an economic
interest and control of the entities through a majority voting iriterest in their
governing board. All significant intercompany items and transactions have been
elirtiinated from the basic consolidated financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing, Inc.
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development, Inc.
Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
Troy Senior Housing Associates, Lirnited Partnership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side)
Winchester Senior Housing Associates. Limited Partnership. (Winchester)
Swanzey Township Housihg Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook)
Keene Highland Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
Highland)
Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Wanwick)

10



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Basiis.of Accountihd

The-consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
utilizirig.the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP),
which require the Organization to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications. The
classes of net assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
impOsed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject
.to donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose
in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net
assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of
Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
rnaintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictioris and with donor restrictions (See Note 12).

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized corhparative
information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to coristitute a presentation in conformity with generally
acxepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2022 from which the summarized information was derived.

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assurnptions that , affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements arid the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the staterhent of cash flows, the Organization considers all
liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits, The Organization has not
experienced' any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Current Vulnerabilitv Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated In a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives,
rules and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies.. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding- to pay for the related cost, including the additional
adrninistrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2023 and 2022. approximately 81%, of the Organization's total revenue was
received from government agencies. The future nature of the Organization Is
dependent upon continued support from the government.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31. 2023
and 2022, respectively. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on
overdue accounts.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances
until It is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Donations / Noncash transactions

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-fived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received. The Organization received $69,852 and
$89,366 in donated services and materials for the years ended May 31. 2023 and
2022, respectively (See Note 15).
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SQUtHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with' a cost
greater than $5,000 and an expected life greater than.one year. Depreciation
is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens, on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the
disposition of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31.
2023 and 2022 totaled $1,036,769 and $989,773, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are. exempt
from Income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards available for the May 31, 2023 and 2022 tax returns
totaling $1,276,789 and $1,252,122. respectively. These loss carryforwards may
be offset against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in
2027. SCS Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryfonwards
totaling $509 and $513 at May 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income and, if not used, will
begin to expire in 2023. SCS Housing Development, Inc. has federal net operating
loss carryforwards totaling $89,166 and $55,129 at May 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future t^able
income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2035.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2023 and 2022;

2023 2022

tax benefit from loss carryforwards $ 286,957 $ 274,630
Valuation allowance (286.957) (274.630)

Deferred tax asset

Drewsville, Troy Senior, Winchester. Keene East Side, Swanzey, Snow Brook,
Keene Highland, and Warwick are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes
are not payable by, or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses' are
included ih the partners' federal income tax returns based on .their share of
partnership earnings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns .with the
State of New Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income-Taxes;"
established the rhinimum threshold for recognizing, and a systerh "for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years and has concluded that no additional provision
for income taxes is necessary in the Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of
fair value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes
a framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair
value which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not
an entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
.priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair yalue hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Leyef 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology'are quoted prices available
in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date..

Level 2 r Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices iri active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES t6 consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Level 3 Inpute to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where'there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes, estimates and assumptions related to, the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates
fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Support and Revenue Recognition

Contracts with Customers

Program service fees are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Organization expects to be entitled for providing childcare services
to its clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and third^party payers, several days
after the services* are performed. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are determined based on the
nature of the services provided by the Organization. The Organization
measures the performance obligations of its childcare services to the point
when it is no longer required to provide services to the client, which is generally
weekly for childcare services. These services are considered to be a single
performarice obligation.

Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is recognized
when services are provided, and the Organization does not believe it is required
to provide additional services to the client.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the
fact that all of the Organization's performance obligations related to contracts
with a duration of less than one year, the Organization has elected to apply the
optional exemption provided in FASB ASC 606-10-50-14(a) and, therefore is not-
required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated tp
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of
the reporting period.

The transaction price for childcare services is based on standard charges for
services provided to clients. Under the terms of the State of New Hampshire
Departrpent of Health and Human Services childcare subsidy programs,
reimbursement for childcare services provided may differ from established
rates. It is the Organization's policy to set its rates to be consistent with current
reirribur^meht rates. Therefore, amounts due do not include significant variable
consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of
revjews and audits.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions-(SuoDort)

Private grarit contributions are recognized when cash, securities of other
assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest
is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the
conditions on which they depend have been substantially met. Support that is
restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor
restrictions, if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the
support is recognized. All other donor-restricted support is reported as an
increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restrictiori. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are feclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and

reported in the combined statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Government Grants and Support

Grant revenue Is derived from various federal grant agreements and various
state arid private entity passthrough grant agreements and contracts to
provide funding support of the Organization's programs and services provided
by the Organization including childcare, child development, social, health,
nutrition, employment, language, energy, and special needs services to
families enrolled in the Organization's programs. The Organization has
evaluated its grant agreements against applicable accounting standard
guidance arid determined that the grant agreements are contributions
(nonreciprocal transaction) conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/pr incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts
received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenses in compliance with specific provisions of the grant agreements.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and
control of the apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual
leases are for a term of one year and are cancelable by the tenants, Control
of the leased units Is transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the

consideration the 'Partnership expects to be entitled to in exchange for the
leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as
incurred'.
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SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various: programs and other activities have been,
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their
nature, such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified
by the type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management
and general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function
using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based.on function
and use.

The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been'
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave,
fringe benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and
Human services. The indirect cost rate is 12% effective from June 1, 2021
through May 31. 2024.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2020, the FASB issued Accounting"Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by
Not-for-profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as
gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed
nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment;
the use of fixed assets or utilities: material and supplies, such as food or
clothing; intangible assets; and recognized contributed services. The ASU
requires a not-for-profit organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets
as a separate line item in the statement of activities, apart from contributions of
cash or other financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for each
category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The amendments in this
ASU should be applied on a retrospective basis and are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The Organization adopted the
provisions of ASU 2020-07 during the year ended May 31. 2023 (See Note 15).

in February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to Increase
transparericy and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease
assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing
key information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The
standard applies a right of use model that requires, all leases with a lease term
of more than 12 months, to recognize an asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be
recorded. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 resulted in the recognitiori of an
operating right of use asset of $98,159 and operating lease liability of $98,159
as of May 31, 2023. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did not have a material
impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash flows (See. Note 6).

17



SOUTHWESTERN CQMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization "has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with ,a bank.
Interest Is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prinie Rate'or at
a- floor rate of 4%. The line is secured by all the Organization's as^ts. As of
May 31,. 2023 and 2022, the interest rate was 8.25% and 4%, respectively.
There was no outstanding balance at May 31, 2023 and 2022,

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt consisted of the following at May 31:

1% mortgage payable to New Hamlashire
Housing, in monthly installments for principal and
interest of $891 through August 2032. The note
is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHH, 96 Miain Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an
operating income formula applied to affordable
housing portion of the specified real estate. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDFA.'96 Main Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through; September 2031, or until the
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHH. 17
Pearl).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash frorfi which to make a payment, or until the
project is sold or.refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHH, 41-43
Central).

2023 2022

$  107,975 $ 117;535

23,589 25,589

242,708 242708

376,066 •376,066
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

4.25%. mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,87.5
through",December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the. year ended May 31. 2019,,
and is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, the interest rate is 4.94% and
monthly installmerits for principal and interest are
$1,957. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 75,268 94,456

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly .installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene OfRce). 2,053,855 2,095,301 -

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on the
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $2,463 including
interest through May 2039. Interest is adjusted
every five years based on remaining principal
baiarice and "Classic Advantage Rate" provided
by Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston which
resulted in an interest rate of 4.67% at May 31,
2023. and 2022. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 348,687 362,931

Non-interest bearifig note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and. Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning
in January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low
income housing through January 2025. The note
is secured by real estate of the Organization
(Hub, Ashuelot). 25.000 50,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR-THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

Non-interest bearing note payable to tbe United
Stkes Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning
in January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low
income housing .through January 2025. The note
is secured by real estate of the Organization
(HUD. 112 Gh'arlestpwn Road). 15,000 ' 30,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the
Orgarlization (NHH. Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 281,406 296,217

Non^interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement
between the City of Keene and SCS for the
purpose of renovating Keene shelters. In total,
SCS will receive $472,000 from CDBG. The
agreement was amended during the year ended
May 31, 2023 to Increase the total loan to
$784,021. SCS will receive the funds as progress
is made. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization' and wjlj be fully forgiven providing
the facility serves low- and moderate-income
individuals for 20 years (Keene Shelters). 761.210 629"28d

5.54% note payable, to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note was paid in
full during the year ended May 31, 2023. The
note was secured by a vehicle (Ally, Econoline
Van). - 1.581
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
ihstallnnents for principal and interest of "$820
through May 2031, The riote is secured by real
estate of the Organization (Savings Bank of
Walpole, 45 Central Street). 69,327 76.974

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note expired in
June 2022 and payment was not necessary
unless the Ofgahization defaults on contract. The
note was forgiven during the year ended May 31,
2023. The note vyas secured by real estate of the
Organization (City of Keene. 139 Roxbury
Street). - 77,100

Non-Interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene; New Hampshire, with an original balance
of $240,000 reduced to $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 2020. No payment is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven each year through June
2037. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (City of KeenOi 139 Roxbury
Street). 180,000 192,000

3.575% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$650 through September 2026. The note Is
secured by a vehicle (Leaf, Dodge Ram). 23,914 30,888

3.75% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
S530 through November 2026. The note is
secured by a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van). 20,166 25,960

4.373% note payable to a finance company in^
monthly installniehts for principal and interest of
$534 through December 2026. the note is
secured by a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van).

20,766 26,576
6.04% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$626 ttirough June 2027. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van). 26,649
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE Y^RS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

5.64% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments fpr principal and interest of
$621 through July.2027. The note is secured by a
vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van). 26,836

5.88% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$631 through September 2027. The note is
secured by a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van). 28,337

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable
to ,a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The

note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(ODBC). 640,000 MO.OOO

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable
to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to
fund energy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHH). 140,210 140.210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire.
Payments are deferred until the note matures in
December 2028. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene. East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016; 10% of the note Is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 93,821 116,841
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficient irfiprovements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHH). 228,934 '228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse. 4.90% simple interest
mortgage' note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033,
principal and interest payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of
the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to
low income housing use restrictions for the 30
yeartenm of the mortgage. 293,634 286,530

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to
low income housing use restrictions for the 40
year temn of the mortgage. 328,879 341,364

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in inbnthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 426.517 431,859

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing "(AHF); due June, 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 229,826 237,173
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

yVihchestef - Nonrrecourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
May 2032, .payable in monthly installments of
$370, including interest at 2.00%, secured by the
Partnership's larid and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the rriortgage note (NHH)l 36,178 39,850

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the
sole discretion of the lender from the excess cash
of the borrower determined by formula, secured
by the Partnership's land and buildings, subject
to low income housing use restrictions for the 30-
year term of the mortgage note (NHH). 75,836 77,452

Winchester - Npn:recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of
the AHP agreement.- In the event of a default
under the aforementioned agreement, the loan is
due upon demand with interest accrued at a rate
of 11.67% for the period the funds were
outstanding (Federal Home Loan Bank). 150,000 150,^000

Keene Highland - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to;New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
August 2035, payable in monthly installments of
$3,122, including interest at 2.90%, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to
low income housirig use restrictions for the 30
year term of the mortgage note (NHH). 383,653 409,579

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred mortgage note payable to the
City of Keene, New Hampshire due June 2035,
payrnent of priricipal is deferred until the due
date, secured by land and buildings (City of
Keene). 915,000 915,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Warwick - 30 year, zero interest, non-recourse
deferred mortgage note payable to the Town of
Winchester. New Harripshire due August 2036,
payment of principal is deferred until the due
date, secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester).-

Total long term debt before unamortized
deferred financing costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less current portion due within one year

2023 2022

500.000 500.000

11,303,436 11.420,143

(16.2951 (16.957)

11,287,141 11,403,186
183.158 159.974

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2023 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  183,158
190,399
197,955
180,203
146,598

10.405.123

S 11.303.436

, note 4 ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN
During June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL) from the Shiall Business Administration with proceeds in the amount of
$150,000. The EIDL is payable over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with a
deferral of payments for 30 months from the date of the note. Installments,
including principal and interest, of $641 monthly begin in December 2022. The
balance of principal and interest will be payable in December 2052. The loan is
secured by the Smajj Business Administration. The balance outstanding on the
loan at May 31, 2023 and 2022 is $148,651 and $150;000, respectively.
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The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31, 2023 were as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  3.685
3,788
3.893

4,001
4,113

129.171

S  148.651

NOTE 5 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt income in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant. HUD and Cornrriunity Development' Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $166,931 and $90,609 for the
years ended May 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 6 OPERATING LEASES

On June 1, 2022, the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease, the right of use
(ROU) assets represent the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to
make lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease
liabilities, all of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on the
present value of future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization
has elected to discount future cash flows at the risk free borrowing rates
comnfiensurate with the lease terms, which was 1.80% at June 1, 2022.
Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under FASB ASC
842 and are recognized as costs are incurred. The Organization's operating
leases are described below.

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under hdn-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from'month to month to 2028. Monthly lease payments range from $470
to $4.050i Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled
$143,725 and $156,230. respectively.
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The Organization elected to use the risk free rate of 1,80% on all operating
leases. The weighted average discourit rate is 1.80%, the weighted average
remaining lease term for operating lease obligations is 2.66 years:

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2023 on the above leases,are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2024

2025

2026

2027

Less imputed interest

Total

Amount

$  32,364

32,945
23.379
12.427

101,115

2.956

i  98159

NOTE 7 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $149,156
and $143,703, respectively.

NOTE 8 CONTINGENCfES

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS
Housing Development, Inc. are the general partners of eight limited
partnerships formed to develop low-income housing projects through the use
of Low Income Housing Tax Credits. Southwestern Conimunity Services; Inc.,
SCS Housing. Inc. and SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed
repayment of liabilities of various partnerships totaling approximately
$11.650,000 and $11,760,000 at May 31. 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,36O,O0O and
$27,348i000 at May 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, provides Collateral on
these loans.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and frorn Federal
sources.. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing taws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in cornpliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be
required to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31, 2023 and 2022.

NOTE 9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years.ended May 31, 2023 and 2022, SOS Housing, Inc. managed
nine limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SOS Housing, Inc.
totaled $243,847 and $237,822, for the years ended May 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Additionally, SOS Housing. Inc. has advanced the-limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total aniounts due and expected to be collected from the limited
partnerships and related entities totaled $53,895 and $47,566 at May 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 10 EQUITY INVESTMENT
Southwestern Comrtiunity Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial Interests in the following companies:

Cityside Housing Associates, LP
Marlborough Homes, LP
Payson'Village Senior Housing Associates, LP'
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP
Westmill Senior Housing, LP
Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP

2023 2022

(9.522) $ (9.516)
(73) (57)

(12,553) (12.539)
(2.643) (2.436)

107,416 137,205
20 , 34

(18.467) (18.461)

^  94:230
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SOS Housing Development. Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityslde Housing
Associates, LP', Maiiborough' Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, Woodcrest Drive
Housing Associates. LP, and Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP. a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP. and a 1%-partner'
of Westmill Senior Housing, LP during the years ended May 31, 2023 and
2022.

SOS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates; LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates. LP. and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during,the years ended May 31, 2023 and 2022.

Summarized financial information for. entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2023 and 2022, consists of the following:

2023 2022

Total assets

Total liabilities 14,694 14,923
Capital/Member's equity 34.632 36.281

Income $ 3,576 $ 3,306
Expenses 4.975 4.713

Net loss S (1.3991

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization rtiaintains a. tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions
of Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had
at least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the
plan. The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization!s
discretion and totaled $349,285 and $310,304 for the years ended May 31.
2023 and 2022, respectively.
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NOTE 12 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

GAPS/Waitn Fund

Transport
H S' Parents Association

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2023 2022

$  116,369 $ 108,508
20,000

7.023 5.844

S

NOTE 13 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The board designates a portion of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello
GAPS funds. There was $12,951 and $12,792 designated by the board at May
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 14 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related
companies' financial assets as of May 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $  2,237,914 $  3,153,976

Accounts receivable, net 2,027,517 1.745,952
Due from related party 53,895 47,566

Cash escrow and reserve funds 1.556.493 1.479.277

Total financial assets 5.875.819 6.426.771

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Due from related party
Resen/e funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Rnancial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

(53,895)
(1.556.4931

(1.610.3881

S 4.265,431

'(47.566)
(1 ■479.277)

(1.526.'843)
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The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand, to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are; on average, approximately
$2,320,000 and $2,350,000 at May 31. 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs..

NOTE 15 IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS/SERVICES
The Orgariization records the value of in-kind contributions 'according to the
accounting policies described In Note 1.

The fair value of gifts in kind included contributions in the financial statements arid
the corresponding program expenses for the year ended May 31, 2023, Is as
follows:

Volunteer hours

Head Starl and Early Head Start $ 69.852

Total

NOTE 16 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial staternents were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be
issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of. financial

position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
finaricial statements. Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide
evidence about conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position
date, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events
through January 24, 2024. the date the financial statemerits were available to
be issued.

Subsequent to year end, on June 29, 2023. Southwestern Community Services
finalized the sale of the property named Drewsville Carriage .House Associates
Limited Partnership, at 4 Common Road, 27 old Cheshire Turnpike, for gross
proceeds of $450,000.
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COHSOUOATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EX}>ENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Gowemmsni contracts
Program tarvicB (acs
Rental income

Support
SportsorsMp
interest Irtcana

ForgivenMS of debt
Miacataneous

Irt-kind contributiorts

Total revenues and otfw support

EXPENSES

Payrol
Pajrofl taxes
Emptoyes tseneflts
Retirernent

Advertising
BarA charges
Computer cost
Contractual

Depreclatioo
Duesfrej^ration
Di«licating
Insurartce

Interest

Meeting artd confererrce
MitceBsrteous expense
MtsceOaneous taxes

Equipment purchases
Office er^eftse
Postage
Professiortallees
Stan development and training
Subscriptiore
Telephona
Travel

Vehicle
Rertt

Space costs
Direct cHenl assistance
Irvkind expertsas

TOTAL FUNCnONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

Alocation of management and general expertses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Education Ecommlc

HorrteErtergy end Honttiesc Houshtg Development Other Total Maragemefit 2023

PrvBmn Nutrttlon. PTOorsms Services Services Programs •Prwrtm. Tetsi

S 9,361,673 S 3.512.407 $ 9.284.456 8 4J17 8 509.801 8 122.526 8 22.815.084 8 892.307 8 23.407.391
622,716 - 182.240 727.503 - 948,499 2.480,960 . 2.460.960

- - 70,369 1.779.682 . - 1,650.051 23.175 1,873.226
136,47S 44,743 255.918.00 3.500 130.414 143,845 714.694 252 715.146

- 2,299 . - 5.928 8,197 - 8,197
1,031 637 2.401 4.042 91 2,522 10,924 7.311 18,235

- • 143.911 23,020 . 166.931 . . 168,931
4,543 3,460 12,123 60,276 . . 80.422 24.320 104.742
. . . . . 09.852 09.852

S 10.148 441 i 3 633 688 1 840.306 i A22isa i 24.1^.31S i 847 365 8 28 844 680

S  694,296 s 1.847,987 $  633,731 8 625.222 8 353,418 $ 441,654 8 4.S96.S10 8 918,734 8 8,515.244
57,691 151,663 50.582 49,028 30,751 36.239 378.154 67,510 443,664
132.466 360,268 144.229 212,389 35,384 128.121 1.012,817 183.746 1,178.563
35,253 105.574 38.178 44.7Ce 15.838 26.598 268.141 83,144 3492S5
3.510 7,035 1.706 3,611 2.333 . 18,195 1,524 19.719

10 - 23 4,175 - . 4.208 8.243 12,451
22,147 21.169 21.648 28,550 19.001 i 112.533 147,767 260,300

751,062 15.648 35.604 21,229 32.679 11,039 867.481 117,724 985,205
• 28.865 159.480 692,182 7.700 688,207 148,562 1.038.^
- 4.460 - 1,080 468 287 6.295 11,110 17.405

1.469 12.587 - - . 14.056 16.742 30,798
13.455 16.378 38.947 70.125 19.755 9.030 187.690 44.378 212.068

- 3.940 5.205 54.004 . 428 63,577 108,653 172,230
13.691 156 696 3.962 4.153 901 23.959 15,367 39,326
1.205 2.599 45 130,108 13.041 1.164 146.162 36.401 184.563

- - . 122.213 . 122,213 451 122.664
7.732 3.636 . 7.983 . . 19,351 590 19.941

66,290 12,574 31.714 12,403 10.330 1.830 135.141 33.063 168.204
1.378 226 t76 123 464 . 2.387 37,767 40,154
2.825 - 6,559 32.542 -

. 41.926 99,770 141.696
10.191 1,323 1.065 6,558 1.760 1.228 22.125 24.323 46.446

- - . 115 . . 115 327 442

7.081 4,964 29,729 19,282 1.771 1,896 64.745 60,155 124.900
7,440 19,611 128.630 10.111 38.103 - 204.095 6.650 210.745
15.962 551 1.653 25.000 83.361 7.639 134,166 772 134,938
19.200 13.900 . • - 33,100 ' 33.100
18.019 244,532 554,835 922,645 15.968 , 1.755.999 160.957 1.916.956

8.012.622 140.913 7.532.435 14.183 52.443 2.284 15.755.080 45.928 15.601.008
- 69.852 - -

. 69.652 . 69.852

6.6K.617 3.090,471 9.417.446 3.113,505 731.021 676,220 26.926,280 .2.360,358 29,286.638

887.450 270.911 625.533 272.930 64.081 59.453 2.380.358 (2.360.358)

$ 10.763.067 8 3.361.362 S 10.242.979 3.388.435 8 795,102 8 737,673 8 29:786.638 8 1 29^86.638

See Indcpcndant Audltora' Report
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gQUTHWeSTERH COMHUMfTY 8ERVtCES INC. AMP RgLtTFO COMPAHIPS

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE Of FUNCTKMtAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY >1. MB

EduntkMi Eeononite

HomeErtsrgy end Homslsii Housing DeveloprTWtt Othsf Total ttanagament 2022

Nutrition Services and General Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Govenvncf* oowact* i 6.661,796 S 3.398.274 5 12.926.412 S 4.791 5 714.196 5 225.735 .5 23.951.204 $  602.370 8 24.553.574

Program MTVica fae V163.M7 . 93.558 781.840 . 946.475 2.985.407 ■6,000 2,991.407
RatVal Income . - 64.046 1,713,405 - . 1.797,451 20.165 1.817.636
St^porl 68.296 14.491 254,638 • 191.342 120.400 649.175 20.000 669,175
Sporaorship . - . . 28.520 28,520 . 28.520
Intereat irtcome 7 2 153 302 56 54 574 525 1.099
Forgtvenau o> ON* - 67.^ 23.019 - - 90.609 - 90.609
MSsceSaneous 10.270 1.033 9.973 66.670 33.651 . 141.797 15.157 156.954
In-kM cortrlxiOons . 89 366 . . . . 89.368 - 89.368

Total iavenues artd oOwr support L. 7K3 90B i 3 503 166 f 13 438 365 2 610 227 1 939245 f 1321 192 f 29.734.103 S  664^7

EXPENSES
Payroll s SSI .449 s 1.553.713 5 601,469 s 672.177 S 340.079 S 416.924 S 4.135.811 $  856,748 8 4.992.559
PayroS taxes 45.132 127.557 49.849 51.549 30.490 35.545 340,122 68.379 408,501
Employee benefits 137.544 387,109 140.322 217.637 27.775 137.164 1.047.571 101.743 1.149.314
Retirement 31.440 96.678 32,887 49.044 16.083 18.580 243.710 68.594 310.304
Advertising 1,066 12.573 428 7.537 8.601 - 30.405 5.120 35.525
Bank Ctiarges 35 663 4.650 • ■ 5.348 9.701 15.049

-Computer cost 307 15.754 13,319 8.001 14.818 . 52.199 127.747 179.946
Contractual 628.975 15.258 67,421 26.033 35.197 992.882 63.330 1.056,212
Oepredatlon > . 28.438 134.038 674.506 . 3,810 636.790 150.983 969.773
OueaTiegistration . 2.539 . 490 508 125 3.062 11.739 15.401
Duplicating . 8,860 - . . . 0.660 5.503 14.163
insmnce 6.123 16,620 35.676 82.108 19.859 7.313 147.699 45.537 193,236
Interest - 423 9.538 48.622 . 276 59.059 116.506 177.565
Meeting and corrfereitce . 354 3,255 832 2.662 7.303 1.636 8.939
Mtscataneou* eweme 670 2.917 120 112.217 6.388 S.1Q2 127.414 30.614 158228
MtsoeSaraous taxes - . . 129.976 . - 129.978 150 130.126
Equtpntem purchases 14.730 3.421 . 5.376 . 519 24,046 720 24.768
Office experaa 43.201 8.735 22.754 10.409 3.813 90 68.702 24.071 112.773
Postage 190 383 28 24 171 - . 796 33.927 34.723
Prtifessionel 1.075 4.323 28,930 . 220 32.546 65.753 116,301
StafI development attd treitwig 1.866 2.687 825 3,095 121 1,665 10.259 6.761 19.040
Subset IptkiTtt • . 228 . 226 160 408
Telephone 5.147 3.727 21.870 19.709 1.930 1.296 53.481 46.594 100.075
Travel 4.715 18.659 11.156 14.784 26.330 249 76.095 1.428 77.523
Vefucle 9.433 - 2.099 24,565 79.216 13,001 128,374 1.420 129,794
Rent 6.000 16.300 - 24.585 - 48,805 . 48,895
Space costs 21,637 205.132 456.408 866,317 19.742 25 1.589,461 164,162 1.753,623
Direct clieni essistartte 5.338,625 21Z.64B 11.724.070 11.007 37.540 2.953 17,327,043 - 17,327,043
in-Und expenses - 89.366 . . - . 89.366 • 69.386

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 7.051.760 2.626.493 13.349.415 3.070.446 658,791 683.000 27.639.005 2,031.268 29871.171

Alocation ol management ertd general expenses 516.236 207.720 981.053 225.648 48.415 50.194 2.031.266 (2.031.266) .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES s 7.569.996 s 3.034.213 * 14.330.468 5 3,296.094 * 707,208 % 733.194 S 29.671.171 * 8 29.671.171

Sm IndtpentfCfR Auditor*' Rtpcrt
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SOUTHWESTgRN CtMWKUWTTY SggVICEa. IWC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPEHOfTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EWDED MAY 31.202S

FB>ERAL ORAKTORf

PASS-THROUOH QRAHTORffROQRAM TrOE

U.S. D>partTmflt of AOTtcuftura

Supplemental Nutrtlion ProQram for

Women. Infants, vid ChOdren (WIC)

Cftild and AdtA Care Food Program

Pood DIatflbtitlon Cluster

Commodity Supplemental Food Program

Commodity Supplemental Food Program (Food CommoditiBs)

ASSISTANCE

LIST1N0

HUM5SS

10.557

10.558

10.SB5

10.SBS

Total U.S. Departmera o( AgrtcuHure

U.S. Oeoertineftt of HouaInQ end Urt>en Develooment

Community Development Biodt Orams/Stste't Program and
Norr-Erddemeni Grants In HaiwaA

C0VID>19 Commuf^ Development Oodc Grants/State's
Pfogmm and Non-Entitlament Grants in Hamraii

Emergerwy SoliAions Grant Program

C0V10-19 Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Supportve Housing Prograrh

Shelter Plus Care

Contnasn of Care Program

Continuum d Cere Program

Contiraium of Cere Program

Total U.S. Departmenl ol Housing artd Urt>en Devalopmeni

U.S. Deotrtment of Transportation Federal TranaH Admlnlatratten IFTAI

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

TranaH Sarvlcea Programe Cluster

Enhanced MobOity of Sarriors and Individuals with DisatiiiUies

Total U.S. Departmenl of Transporttfon Fedaral Transit Administration (FTA)

1

PASS-THROUGH

QRAWTOR-SNAME

State of NH. Department of Hetlh & Human Services

State of NH. Department of Education

Conwnunlty Action Program Oettnap MerrlmBC*: Courttiee
Community AcSon Program BcRnap-Metrlmach Counties

QRAWTOR-S NUMBER

010-09D-52600000-S00689

Unltnown

Unktrown

Unfcnovm

FEDERAL

EXPEWOfTURE

■ 4.416

102.824

369.773

119.162

107.240

596,175

4.228 CHy of Keerte 19-038COPF 3 544.798

14.228 Cky of Claremont 45 Ceriral Street 112J67 S 657.185

14.231

14.231

State of NH. DHHS, Bureau of Housing Supports

State of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Housing Supports

1(K>42-792700(X>-102.500731

1CM)42-7B270(XX>-t02-50073l

5 240.733

37.684 278.417

14.235 State of NH, DHHS. Bureau of Housing Supports 10-042.79270000-074.500589 187.971

14.238 State of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Housing Supports 1(MM2.7927000CM)74.500S89 305,243

14.267

14,267

14.267

State of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Housing Supports

State of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Housing Supports
State of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Housing Supports

104)42.792700004}74-S00589

104)42.792700004)74-500589

104)42.70270000-074.500589

220.467

85.407

132.233 4M.107

S 1.888.903

20.509 Stata of ffH. Department of Transportation 04-96-86.064010.2916 5 381.464

20.513 State of NH. Oepartmant of Transportation 04-86-96.964010.2916 92.381

473,845

See Notes to Scliedule of Expertdlturea of Federal Awards
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8QtfTHWESTgRW COMMUWrTY SgBVtCes. IMC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. »23

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRAKTOWPROGRAM TITLE

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH.

OFWfTPM GRANTORS NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

U A D««tnwrt of Tft«oiv

Emergency Rental Aesimrtce Program

Emergency Rental Aesictance Program

Coronavkua Stats and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

21.023

21.023

21.027

New Hampshire Housing

New Kampshitv Housing

New Hampshire Housing

ERA1.ERA2

00FRF602PH9S29A

Emergency Temporary Housirtg

$ 7,263.277

130000 7.393J277

62.710

Total U.S. Depertmenl of Treasury S 7.455.987

Westhertzation Asslstanca for LmMtcome Persons

Weatherizstlon Asststance for LovMncome Persons

ai.042

81.042

Stats of NH. DepeHment of Energy

State of NH. Department of Energy

02-52-52-520010-335600p(M}74.500S87

02-52-52-520010-XXXX00ODO74.5OO587

S 232.735

130.446 $ 363.181

Total U.S. Depertmera of Envgy $ 363.181

U.S. Deoertment of Health A Human Services

A^ing Cluster

Spedal Prograrm for die Aging. TUe III. Part B.
Grants for Supportive Services and Seiuor Centers

Spedal Programs tor ihe Aging. TMe III. Part B.

Grints for Supportive Services and Senior Centers

93.044

93.044

State of NH. Dtpartmeni of Energy

State of NH. DHHS, Bureau of EMerty & Adult Services

02.52-52-520010-33S4000MI74-5005e7

48030315

$ 811

57.087 s 57.898

Grants to States 10 Support Oral Heettti Workforce AciivttIas 93.238 State of NH. DHHS. NH Medicaid 1008366 373

Activities (0 Support Stale. Trtel, Local and Territorial (STLT)
Heath Department Resporae lo PubNc Health or Heathcare

Crises 93.391 State of NH. DHHS. Division of Public Health Seivfees 90577150 97.445

Lw Income Household Water Assistance Program 93.499 State of NH. Department of Energy
02-52-S2-62010-19860000500587.
02-52-52-SZn 0-24520000500587 229.492

Low income Home Energy Asslstanca (Fuel Assistance)

Low Income Home Energy Assistance (BWP)

COVID-t 9 Lmr Income Home Energy Assistance
ARPA Low Income Home Energy Assistance (BWP)

93.568

93.588

93.588

93.568

Stale of NH. Qepertment of Energy

State of NH, Department of Energy

State of NH, Oepartment of Energy

State of NH. Department of Eitergy

02-052-0S2-S201O33540000

02-52-52-52001033540000-074-500587

02-052-052-S2001024490000

02-0S2-0S2-S2C01O24490000074-500587

6.709,925

135.169

1,579.232

16.383 0440.709

Community Services Block Grartt

COVIO-19 Community Ser^Aces Block Grark

93.589

93.569

State of NH, DHHS. Div. of Family Assistance

State of NH. DHHS. DMslon of Ecorwmic 8 Housing

" StabUtty'

45012170

500731

402.239

114.705 518.944

Community Services Block Gram • Discretionary 93 570 State of tfH, DHHS. Div. of Family Axsisti^- Unknown 22.652

8n Notn to Sctttdulo of Expondlturn of PtdenI AwsrIs
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITV SERVtCES l>*C.

SCHEDULE OF EXRENOrTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

ASSISTANCE

PE[%RALGRM4TOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTC^-S NAME GRAHTOR^ fttlMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDfTURE

U.8. Dooartment of HMllh & Human Sarvices IconBowadl

Hoad StwtCiustor

Head Start

C0VID-19Head&art

93.600

93 600

effect Furtding
Direct Fumttig

01CH011494

01CH011494

$ 2.424.069

177.773 S 2.601.882

Total U S Deparfinent of Health & Hhiman SarvicM S 11.967.375

U.S. DwMHtmaflt of Homeland SKMrltv

Emefoency Food anl Shelter National Board Program 97.024 State of NH. QHHS. Office of Human Services Unknown s 1.548

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security * 1.548

TOTAL f 22,726.014

8m NoCm to Sc^Mlul* of BqMNKliturM of Fwtenii AM«to

M



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Sen/ices, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2023. The
information in this;Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
-Requirements, Cost Principies, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Unfform iSuidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., It is not. intended to
and does-not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the. Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable of are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten p'ercent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwesterti Community Services, Inc. had no subredpients for the year ended
May 31 ,'2023.
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Leone,
McDonneU
& Roberts

CiiHTIFIliUPUBUC^CCOUf^rAfJn!:

DOVER • WOraiORO
NORTH CONVaY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained InrGovemment
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, arid cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 24, 2024.

■ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s Iritemal control pyer financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of perfprming their assigned functions, to
prevent; or detect and'correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is .a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies.' in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a corhbination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

S6



Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this sectign and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal, control
that might be-material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal controj that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknes'ses or significant deficiencies -may exist that were
not identified;

Rebort on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Comrnunity Services,
lnc;'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed, tests
of'its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncomplianqe.with which could have a direct and material effect on the consolidated financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion; The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The.purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal .control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering- the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
January 24, 2024
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Ki{yFi«siOfJAi.ASax:iA'ni)>j

LEJlTtFIED'PDEUCACaJiJNTAffpi

UOVEIi f WOLFEbORO

"NOR'niCONVAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Report oh Cbmpliahce for Each Malor Federal Program

Opinion on' Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2023.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified In the summary
of auditors' results sectioii of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In. our opinion, Southv/estern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its iriajor federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained \n Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of thd United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for F^ederal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report..

We are required to be independent of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf^cient and appropriate to
provide a basis for bur opinion on compliance for each major federal prograrn. Our audit does,
not provide a legal determination of Southwestern Community Senrices, Inc.'s compliance with
the cornpiiahce requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for conipliahce with the requirements referred to above and for the'
design, Implementation, arid maihtOnance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts, of grant
agreements; applicable to Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compllarice

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncOmpliance with
the corripliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error; and
express an opinion on Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that.an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompiiance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompiiance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or In the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemmeiit
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

• ^ercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material noncompiiance, whether due to fraud or
en'or, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other.procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumMances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed. '

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on fnternal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance 'exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perforriiing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllarice with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a tiinely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal contrpi over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of cornpliance requirement of a federal program will not be. prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significaht deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency , or a
combination of deficiencies, In internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our-consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify-any deficiencies iri intemal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses of significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
January 24, 2024
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIMUNrTY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1; The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the consolidated financial statements-are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses
are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Sen/Ices, Inc. and related companies, which would be required.

■ to be reported in accordance with Government Auditirig Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No nriaterial
weaknesses are reported.

5. the auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services,, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs^

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Treasury: Emergency
Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023; and U.S. Department of Energy; .Weatherization
Assistance for Low-Income Persons, ALN 81.042.

•8. the threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestem Community ServiceSi Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

SIGNIFICANT deficiency

2022-001 - Lack of accurate and timely reconciliations

^ Condition: There was a delay In accurate accpunt reconciliations at May 31. 2022.

'Recommendation: Internal control policies and procedures should be followed throughout
the year-to ensure accurate and timely reconciliations.

Current Status: The Organization has made improvements to their internal control policies
and appears to be following the policies as designed.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Board of Directors

2024 Composition

Constituent

SEaoR

Cheshire County Sullivan County

Ron Nason

SCS Tenant

Mary Lou Huffling

Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Heather Cameron
Anne Seattle

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Newport Service Organization

Private

Sector

Kevin Watterson, Chair

Swamp Bats

Clarke Companies {retired)

Dominic Perkins,

Treasurer/Secretary

Senior VP, Retail Administration

Savings Bank of Walpole

David Edkins, Vice-C/io/r

Town of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.

Early Childhood Education

River Valley Community College

Public

Sector

Jay Kahn

Current Mayor, City of Keene
Former State Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Andy Bohannon Liz Emerson

Deputy City Manager Planning and Zoning Administrator

City of Keene Town of Charlestown

Rev. 04.15.24



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH DEPT OF ENERGY

Agency Name: Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Program Name:WAP DOE

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

Annual Salary oi Key
Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of

Salary Paid By
Contract

Gabriel Leonard, Energy Conservation Director $70,000 15.00%

Sarah Murphy, Energy Conservation Program Mgr $41,600 15.00%

Michele Crown, Energy Conservation Project Mgr, PTE $32,000 15.00%

Krlsten Field, Energy Conservation Program Assistant $40,560 15.00%

Rick Manwaring, Fiscal Specialist, PTE $37,440 15.00%



Gabriel Leonard

Employment History

Southwestern Community Sen/Ices (Keene, NH) Energy Conservation Director July 2021- Present

Energy Conservation Manager Aug 2016- July 2021

•  Responsible for the oversight & supervision of the Energy Conservation Program.
•  Handle in-progress monitoring of weatherization projects, preparation of requisite work order changes,

and documentation of the historical nature of individual projects.

•  Create work orders for projects based on field notes & project modeling software supplied by other
Energy Auditors.

•  Supervise daily schedules & duties of the EC staff.
•  Maintain yearly, monthly, daily, invoicing, tracking & papenwork for the EC program.
•  Communicate effectively with clients, contractors and government organizations to foster positive

communication for successful project completions.
•  Coordinate disbursements of multiple program budgets to ensure maximum project impact and fiscal

competency each program year.

All Seasons Construction Corp. (Springfield, VT) Assistant Project Manager Nov 2015- Aug 2016

•  Responsible for supporting Project Manager in the planning, management direction, project completion,
client satisfaction, and financial outcome of assigned construction projects.

•  Create estimates within Sage project management software.

•  Supports the Project Manager functions such as monthly forecasts, estimating, and budgeting.
•  Assists in ensuring that all documentation meets internal standards, procedures and specifications.
•  Ensures good, transparent and effective reporting and documentation.
•  Delivers all documents in a timely manner so that progress can be fully communicated.
•  Communicates with Site Manager for site project documentations.
•  Responsible for verifying blueprints and construction process on multiple build phases.

New Hampshire Employment Security (Claremont, NH) DVOP Employment Specialist Jan 2015- Nov 2015

•  Disabled Veterans Outreach Program (DVOP) Specialist facilitated workforce services for veterans,
others eligible and employers.

•  Provided specialized workforce services for veterans, especially veterans with barriers to employment,
i.e., job development sen/ices for veterans, refer veterans to employment/training opportunities, provide
counseling/guidance, and assist veterans with other workforce services (resume assistance, labor
market information, job search workshops, one-stop career center orientation, etc.).

HURLEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS (Randolph. VT) Project Manager Nov 2009- Sep 2014

•  Provided site supervision on a diverse range of commercial office installation projects. Tailored custom
solutions to customer needs.

•  Managed, hired and trained a team of seven employees. Created and implemented a customer service
standard for the organization.

•  Developed relationships with third party sales representatives to sell Hurley Office Solutions' services.
•  Negotiated bids, responded to RFPs and successfully closed contracts.

•  Analyzed the business and marketplace and created a strategic plan for the organization that included
new marketing, human resources, job site and documentation plans.



BASIC PSA {Johnstown, PA/ Kennebunk, ME) Snubber Removal & Reinstallation Technician

VC Summer Nuclear Power Station Oct 2012 - Nov 2012
Susquehanna Nuclear Power Station Mar 2012 - Apr 2012

•  Evaluated, removed & reinstalled nuclear snubbers, mechanical and hydraulic shock absorbers, to
prevent unwanted activity during scheduled power outages paying close attention to ail safety protocols
and procedures.

IBZ CONTRACTING (Spring Valley, NY) Heavy Equipment Operator Jul 2008 - Aug 2009

• Managed heavy equipment for a waterfront restoration and worked closely with EPA inspectors and
project engineers.

FULLTIME MANAGEMENT (New York, NY) Property Manager Jan 2008 - May 2008

•  Managed multiple residential properties, with responsibilities including general upkeep, small repairs
and tenant relations.

FINESTKIND HANDYCRAFTSMEN (Kitsap County, WA) Proprietor Dec 20'04 - Jan 2007

•  Coordinated contracts for construction, successfully managed crew and contracts to ensure timely and
satisfactory completion of projects.

•  Provided services including finish carpentry, masonry, drywall, interior / exterior painting, residential
electrical and plumbing, landscaping, roofing, and decking.

UNITED STATES NAVY (Bremerton, WA & San Diego, CA) Nov 2002 - Dec 2007
USS John C Stennis, CVN 74, Kitsap Navy Base & Coronado Navy Base

Aviation Ordnance Specialist Supervisor Nov 2004 - Dec 2007
Aviation Ordnance Specialist Nov 2002 - Nov 2004

•  Instructed, supervised and evaluated the performance of 60 personnel and oversaw $1 billion plus of
highly sensitive weapons and navy specific heavy equipment.

•  Communicated effectively in diverse and hostile environments, both with personnel and upper
management under stressful conditions.

Education

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE (Concord, NH) B.S. Business Management, GPA 3.72 magna cum laude 2014

CPR CERTIFIED NATIONAL HEART ASSOCIATION 2015

ASSOCIATED TRAINING SERVICES (Portsmouth. NH) Heavy Equipment Operation School 2008

NAVY LEADERSHIP PROGRAM (USS John C Stennis, CVN 74) 2004



Sarah Murphy
Energy Conservation Program Manager
Southwestern Community Services

Professional Experience

Energy Conservation Program Manager January 2022 - Present

-  Support the Program Director in the planning, management, direction, project completion, and client
satisfaction on outcome of projects.

-  Assist with the closing out of energy conservation projects through the billing and invoicing process.
Oversee client eligibility and enrollment regarding program priories and grant criteria.

-  Manage waitlist priority system to streamline auditor scheduling, reduce deferrals, and exceed utility
production goals.

Energy Conservation Program Assistant February 2018 - January 2022

-  Provide administrative support to the Weatherization Team including general office management, data
entry, and electronic file system maintenance.

-  Organize information and application packets for clients and program contractors.
-  Prioritize client communication and serve as a liaison with the public, participants, and agency staff.
-  Process supply and equipment orders and research and enroll Training & Technical Assistance

opportunities for contractors and staff.

Energy Services Intake Specialist May 2015 - February 2018

•  Maintained program integrity when qualifying a high-volume of income eligible households seeking
federal, state, and utility-funded energy assistance.

- Worked with participants to prevent heating emergencies, obtain conservation services, vendor
mediation, and benefits management.

-  Assisted the Fiscal Department with participant benefit payment monitoring and validation.
Referred participating households and interested community partners to area resources and agency
programs.

Landmark College Enrollment & Student Affairs Associate November 2013 - January 2015

-  Addressed phone, walk-in and email inquiries relative to campus visits and the application process.
-  Provided support to Admissions, Enrollment Management Directors, and Dean of Students
-  Processed data for travel leads, recruitment, and transfer services.

-  Assisted with event organization, admissions projects, college fairs, and student visits.
-  Organized department files and records, ensuring confidentiality.

Trainino and Education

2023 - A to Z Grant Writing, Keene State College, Graduate Studies & Extended Education

2022 - Non-profit Management, Keene State College, Graduate Studies & Extended Education

2019 - Building Science Principles Certificate of Knowledge, BPI

2017 - Green Dot etc. Instructor Certification, Green Dot Institute

2016 - Connecticut Community for Addiction Recovery (CCAR), Recovery Coach Academy

2015 - Associate of Science, Human Services River Valley Community College

2003 - Associate in Applied Science, Marketing Long Island University, Brooklyn



Michele R. Crown

Employment History

February 2023 to present; Southwestern Community Services Energy
Conservation Program as Project Manager.

July 2019 to November 2020: Bus Driver for Southwestern Community
Services In Sullivan County.

October 2005 to August 2016: Southwestern Community Services, 63
Community Way, Keene, NH 03431 (603)-352-7512.
Weatherizatlon Manager.
Once the energy audits are done, I model the projects. I communicate
with the homeowner on what measures we would like to do to their

home. I coordinate with the contractor to do the work. After the final

audit, complete the model and submit for final approval. Close out the
paperwork and documentation and billing data. Supervise staff.
I have also done special projects as they arose.

I have worked In the Housing Maintenance department doing
apartment turnovers, and all the normal maintenance and repair
issues that arise, along with snow removal at the Sullivan County
properties. I am familiar with all of the SCS properties.

August 1999 to October 2005: Home Depot, 22 Ashbrook Road,
Keene, NH 03431 (603)-335-2113.
I have worked in several areas of the store, including bookkeeping,
sales associate, and inventory management.
For one year I was Team Depot Captain for Community Projects.

July 1998 to August 1999: J.H. Dunning, Main St., North Walpole, NH
03609 (603)-445-5591.
Machine and building maintenance, special projects (e.g., prototypes
for new products). Supervise the manufacture of the prototype from
conception to finished product. Ordering tools and monitoring supply
requirements for projects. Drafting, (e.g., scaled drawings for
prototypes).
I also supervised employees.

October 1996 to July 1998: Sears, 200 Loudon Road, Concord NH,
03301.

Sales Associate in plumbing and seasonal.



May 1993 to October 1996: Shaker Pine Reproductions, 418 Shaker
Road, Canterbury, NH 03244 (603)-783-44G3.
Manufactured Shaker Reproductions of fine furniture; supervised
employees; supply monitoring and ordering. Taught hand cut
dovetailing at Canterbury Shaker Village.

April 1991 to October 1995: Canterbury Shaker Village, 288 Shaker
Road, Canterbury, NH 03244, 603-783-9511.
Grounds keeping and equipment maintenance. Set-up for special
events. Supervised volunteers and community service workers for
special projects. Restoration carpentry on historic buildings.

1990 through 1994: Self employed as 'Crown Carpentry'.
Did minor home renovations and repair. I am experienced in rough
and finished carpentry, minor plumbing and electrical, sheet rocking,
ceramic tile work, and new construction. I did the warranty work on
modular homes at Pine Ridge in Loudon. Have about 30 years of
working experience.
(I was also working part time at Shaker Village, as noted above)



KRISTEN FIELD
EXPERIENCE

ENERGY CONSERVATION PROGRAM ASSISTANT

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES - KEENE, NH

January 2022 - Present
Direct client communication regarding the Weatherization program

process; maintaining Nvaitlists, priority lists, client outreach; administration
of the 21 in 21 community project including client communication and

managing scheduling; ordering supplies for ECP staff; creating and

maintaining training materials for agency staff; onboarding new staff;
processing incoming program mail; other duties as assigned

SKILLS

In-depth knowledge of

trauma informed care

Compassionate

Knowledge of local

resources

Calm demeanor, even in

crisis

Excellent time management

Strong ability to hold space
for others

Strong office skills
(organized, accurate, written
communication, etc.)

Experience diffusing difficult

situations

Extensive knowledge of

mental health diagnosis' and
neurodiversity

Knowledge of court systems

and legal procedures

ENERGY SERVICES INTAKE TECHNICIAN

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES - KEENE, NH

February 2018 - Present

Processing applications for clients wishing to apply for fuel and electric
assistance; determining which households fit the criteria for energy
emergencies; referrals to outside agencies for additional assistance;
responsible for creating of Intake Technician and Program Assistant

Training Manuals; often called upon to create or re-vamp forms and client
correspondence

PROGRAM ASSISTANT

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES - KEENE. NH
June 2017 - February 2018

Reception duties; accepting deliveries; routing client calls to the appropriate
program; diffusing angry clients in the lobby to determine how to best serve

them; working within the Fuel Assistance Program to provide clerical
support; scheduling appointments for staff; assisted with mass mailings;

other duties as assigned

PRODUCTION ASSISTANT

C.E. BRADLEY LABORATORIES - BRATTLEBORO, VT

September 201S - June 2017

Contact and coordinate pick-ups and ship-outs with various transportation
companies; Log and record retains for later testing and sampling; data
entry; create bill of ladings for shipments and customs paperwork for

shipments out of counti7



BILLING CLERK

C.E. BRADLEY LABORATORIES - BRATTLEBORO. VT

January 2012 - September 201S

Invoice customers for orders placed; Track usage and sales; Check pricing
for incoming orders as well as updating raw material costs and filing pricing

cards; Answer phones and respond to a variety of customer inquiries

CUSTOMER SERVICE

UNITED NATURAL FOODS. INC - CHESTERFIELD. NH

September 2006 - August 2008; January 2010 - May 201 1

Processing orders for customers; answering questions regarding products
and deliveries; listen to customer complaints and resolve to the best of my
ability; created allocation orders for VVhole Foods; worked closely with the

Operations Manager to create orders for Blue Marble Brands

QUALITY CONTROL ASSOCIATE

UNITED NATURAL FOODS. INC - CHESTERFIELD. NH

August 2008 - January 2010

Organized and collected organic certification for over 800 vendors; verified
all legal information on certificates pertaining to USDA regulations;
processed credits for vendors on returned product; ran out of stock

reports for accounting

RECEPTION

WINSTON L. PROUTY CENTER - BRATTLEBORO. VT

March 2006 - September 2006

Answered phones: Greeted parents coming into office; Helped to organize
fund-raising drives; Helped to put information together for state

certification

RECEPTION

STATE FARM INSURANCE AGENCY - BRATTLEBORO. VT

March 2006 - September 2006

Entered billing information for customers; entered payments into system;
answered phones; began insurance process for new customers



EDUCATION

B.A. FORENSIC PSYCHOLOGY - 2018

MINOR IN CRIMINAL JUSTICE
Southern New Hampshire University

GPA: 2.7

Classes Included: Abnormal psychology; Introduction to Psychology;

Introduction to Criminal Justice: Corrections in the US; Counseling
Processes; Crime and Violence: Criminal Law; Criminal Psychology; Ethics

and the Criminal justice Leader; Forensic Law; Forensic Psychology: Human
Growth and Development; Introduction to Human Services; Juvenile

Justice; Offender Rehabilitation; Psychology of Personality; Psychopaths,
Sociopaths, and Serial Killers; Research Investigation; Sociology of Crime

and Violence; Sociology of Deviant Behavior; Victims and the Justice System

CERTIFICATION IN PEER TRAUMA RECOVERY COACHING

The International Association of Trauma Recovery Coaching

Material covered includes: Intrddualon to Trauma and Its Impact on

Children; Intergenerational Trauma; Psychological. Emotional, and
Relational Impact of Trauma; Addiction and Trauma Informed Care;
Attachment and Attunement; Basic Coaching Skills; Trauma Recovery
Coaching Skills; Adjunaive and Support Tools; Appointment protocols
(including establishing client safety); Bodywork; Self-Care for Coaches;

various business related lectures

This certification program also includes 12 hours of coaching practice; 5
hours of practicum coaching; a certification exam; and a portfolio

CONTINUING EDUCATION

Virtual Trauma Summit - June 22'"» and 23'^-2020: 20 CEC's

Virtual Trauma Summit-June 19^ and 20'''-202l: 20 CEC's



Richard Manwaring

Professional Business Experience

LA. Burdick Chocolate, Walpole NH Oct 2021 to Jan 2023

Manufacturer and retail cafis of high-end chocolates, pastries and hot cocoa

Part-Time Finance Manager

Responsible for all accounting functions for manufacturing and 6 retail cafes

• Accomplishments

Stabilized small accounting staff including recruiting and training my successor

Continued implementation of NetSuite with focus on accounting controls

Installed cash controls at cafe and corporate level

GS Precision, Keene NH Jan 2021 to Oct 2021

Manufacturer of critical components for the Aerospace and Defense Industries

Controller

Maintain financial records for 11 legal entities

• Accomplishments

Quickly learned month end closing process for 11 separate legal companies

Improved weekly cash flow reporting to improve accuracy and include weekly variance
reporting

Applied and receiving $2.4M federal grant

401k Trustee

Hillside Village, Keene, NH Sep 2019 to Jan 2021

A senior living facility

Accounting Director

Responsible for financial leadership and all accounting functions



Accomplishments

Untangled mitllons of doliars of accounting errors which prevented Board from financial

visibility and would have failed a clean audit

Implemented multiple software packages to help streamline accounting

operations

Mentored Accounting Assistance who transitloned to the Accounting Director

Formed Resident Finance Committee to allow residents a voice in financial

situation

Samson Manufacturing Corp., Keene, NH May 2017 to Sept 2019

A manufacturer of gun accessories and components

Chief Financial Officer

Responsible for financial leadership and all accounting functions

•  Accomplishments

Playing key role in ERP implementation especially in creating new reporting structures and

product costing

Implemented inventory reporting changes to facilitate accurate monthly reporting

Determined critical financial metrics for senior management

Discovered year end revenue recognition error creating tax savings of $30,000

Negotiated with bank the Immediate elimination of midyear CPA compilation creating $16,000

savings

Vermed Inc., Bellows Falls, VT 2005 to 2017

A manufacturer and distributor of medical sensors

Finance Director

Responsible for accounting functions, payroll, IT, and various benefit administration

• Accomplishments

Established and managed SOX compliance when company was publicly traded company

Including quarterly internal audits and annual external audits

Participated in management buyout with senior managers saving company from being

purchased by competitors and closing plant

Secured highly leveraged buyout financing 90% of purchase price with funding from several

sources and closed deal in 60 days

Remained compliant with all banks and taxing authorities

Transitioned systems and IT needs to new buyers including significant changes to our product

costing systems



New England Business Services, Peterborough NH 1999 to 2004

A manufacturer ofprinted business forms for smali companies

Plant Financial Manager

Responsible for month end closing, forecasting, and financial analysis

• Accomplishments

Improved weekly performance review process by more accurately reporting department and

plant rcllups and providing models to better measure product mix and volume impacts.
Incorporated key cost drivers to weekly performance reporting to better determine short-term
business outlook

Developed profitability model for complex business line; model is based on ABC principles and
has been used as a template for other divisions to help understand both profitable product lines

and sales channels

Improved inventory cycle count accuracy and reduced average amount of inventory adjustments.

Developed and implemented product costing system for new or customized products

Managed multi plant project to centralize accounting procedures where possible, to ensure

consistency among plants, and identify areas for process improvement

TFX Medical, Jaffrey, NH 1992 to 1999

An OEM manufacturer of plastic tubing and disposable medical supplies

Controller

Responsible for all accounting functions for multiple divisions and reporting units

• Accomplishments

Managed software implementation of GL, Order Entry, Inventory Management, Purchasing,

Shipping, Receiving, and MRP modules

Assumed additional management responsibilities for Information Systems, Purchasing,

Materials, and Shipping/Receiving; performed accounting functions for multiple divisions and

reporting units

Achieved working capital improvement 4 consecutive years, with specific improvements to

Collections, Accounts Payable and Inventory management

Achieved successful year end audits consistently; recognized as having excellent accounting

controls and practices

Developed and implemented an Hourly Pension Plan arid a Profit Sharing Plan

Established HR policies and procedures and created system link from HR to payroll to improve

accuracy and reduce payroll costs

Education

MBA, Franklin Pierce College, Rindge, NH

BS, Accounting, Bentley College, Waltham, MA


